



ArchivesSpace
a community served by ✦ LYRISIS

Newburyport, Mass. First Church disunion records, 1743-1770. RG0131

This finding aid was produced using ArchivesSpace on January 08, 2024.

English

DACS2 - 2013

Congregational Library & Archives

14 Beacon Street

Suite 200

Boston, MA 02108

Business Number: 617-523-0470

info@14beacon.org

URL: <http://www.CongregationalLibrary.org>

Table of Contents

Summary Information	3
Historical Note	4
Scope and Contents	5
Arrangement	5
Administrative Information	5
Related Materials	6
Controlled Access Headings	6
Bibliography	7
Collection Inventory	7

Summary Information

Repository:	Congregational Library & Archives
Creator:	First Church (Newburyport, Mass.)
Creator:	Lowell, John, 1704-1767
Creator:	Third Church (Newbury, Mass.)
Title:	Newburyport, Mass. First Church disunion records, 1743-1770.
ID:	RG0131
Date [inclusive]:	1743-1770
Physical Description:	4 Folders
Language of the Material:	English .
Abstract:	The Third Church of Newbury was formally gathered in 1726. In 1743 a group of parishioners left the church to more closely follow the teachings of George Whitefield and form the First Presbyterian Church. In 1764 the town of Newburyport was incorporated and the Third Church became the First Church in Newburyport. In 1794 the Parish voted to be incorporated as the First Religious Society. By 1825 the church was already aligned with the Unitarian denomination. The church continues to serve the Newburyport community today. The collection includes correspondence and letters of dismissal related to the 1743 withdrawal of members.

Preferred Citation

[Identification of item], in the Newburyport, Mass. First Church disunion records, 1743-1770, RG0131. The Congregational Library & Archives, Boston, MA.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Historical Note

The town of Newbury, Massachusetts, by the eighteenth century, had three major population centers. The first, in Oldtown, was settled along the Wessacucōn River (also transcribed as Quascacunquen and now known as the Parker River) in 1635. Later, a second population center began to form in the western half of Newbury (now West Newbury) which resulted in the formation of the Second Parish in 1694. Another population center formed along the southern bank of the Merrimac River in Newtown, also known as the Port. Unlike agrarian Oldtown, Newtown was largely a commercial center focused on shipping and trading. This economic difference ultimately resulted in the formation of the Third Parish in 1722. The Third Parish Society was formed in 1725 and the Third Church was formally gathered on January 2, 1726. Construction on the first meeting house was completed in 1725.

After preaching at the new meeting house as an interim minister, John Lowell was formally invited to become the first pastor of the Third Church in Newbury. He was ordained on January 19, 1726. In 1737 the meeting house was enlarged to accommodate the Port's growing population. In 1740, Rev. Lowell invited George Whitefield to preach a sermon at the meeting house; after the sermon over 140 new communicants were added to the parish registry. Some of those new communicants left in 1743 when 38 men left the Third Church, unhappy with Rev. Lowell's more liberal teachings, to more closely follow George Whitefield's teachings and gather their own church; they formed the First Presbyterian Church (now known as the Old South Presbyterian Church) in 1746. In 1764 the Third Parish of Newbury was officially incorporated as the separate town of Newburyport. At that time the name of the church changed to First Church. Rev. Lowell continued to preach at Newburyport until his death in 1767.

In 1794 the parish and church voted to incorporate as the First Religious Society in Newburyport. In 1798 the church began the process of selling the first meeting house and finding land for the construction of new meeting house. A location on Pleasant Street was chosen and the second meeting house was dedicated on October 2, 1801. A community Sunday school was formed in 1817; in 1824 the First Religious Society established its own Sunday school after some parishioners felt dissatisfied with the community school.

By 1825 the church was considered to be affiliated with the Unitarian denomination. The Reverends Thomas Fox (pastor 1831-1846) and Thomas Wentworth Higgins (pastor 1847-1849) continued to push for church reforms. Both pastorates were notable for doctrinal and political differences which caused tumult within the parish community. Rev. Higgins resigned after two years due to the parish's hostility towards his strongly held abolitionist views. During the 1880s the second meeting house was repaired and restored.

The First Religious Society continues to serve the Newburyport community today as a Unitarian Universalist Unitarian Church. The 1801 meeting house continues to serve as the church building; it was added to the National Register of Historic Places in 1976 and included in the Newburyport Historic District in 1984.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Scope and Contents

This collection contains correspondence and formal letters of withdrawal related to a group of parishioners in the Third Church in Newbury, Massachusetts, desiring to leave the parish in 1743 to form a new Presbyterian church. Most of the materials are either addressed to Rev. John Lowell or written by Rev. Lowell. Two of Lowell's letters, one in response to the initial withdrawal request and the other to a call for a church meeting, are pamphlet length and were intended for public reading and publication.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Arrangement

Materials have been arranged in chronological order by start date.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Administrative Information

Publication Statement

Congregational Library & Archives

14 Beacon Street

Suite 200

Boston, MA 02108

Business Number: 617-523-0470

info@14beacon.org

URL: <http://www.CongregationalLibrary.org>

Restrictions on Access

Access to this collection is unrestricted and open to the public.

Restrictions on Use

Items in this collection are subject to U.S. Copyright Law. It is the responsibility of the researcher to determine the copyright status of collection items and to secure any permissions necessary for their reproduction and publication. Requests for permission to publish material must be discussed with the archivist or librarian.

Acquisition Information

No acquisition information is available for this collection.

Processing Information

Processed by Zachary Bodnar, May 2019, using DACS Second Edition.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Related Materials

Related Materials

The early records of the First Religious Society in Newburyport, Massachusetts, are available through the New England Historic Genealogical Society. In addition, these records have been digitized as part of the New England's Hidden Histories project and digital reproductions are [available to view online](#).

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Controlled Access Headings

- Church controversies.
- Church records and registers.
- First Church (Newburyport, Mass.)
- First Religious Society (Newburyport, Mass.)
- Newbury (Mass.) -- Church history.
- Newburyport (Mass.) -- Church history.
- Third Church (Newbury, Mass.)
- Whitefield, George, 1714-1770

Bibliography

Atkinson, Minnie. *A History of the First Religious Society in Newburyport, Massachusetts*. Newburyport: the News Publishing Co., Inc., 1933. Available digitally through the Hathi Trust: <https://hdl.handle.net/2027/wu.89067487744>.

[^ Return to Table of Contents](#)

Collection Inventory

Title/Description	Instances	
Response to dismissal request, 1743	box Small 1	folder 34
Response to call for meeting, 1743	box Small 1	folder 35
Rev. John Lowell correspondence, 1743-1763	box Small 1	folder 36
Letters of withdrawal & dismission, 1743-1770	box Small 1	folder 37